

PARISH OF OOLA - BARONY OF COONAGH

PARISH OF OOLA

INDEX

MEST CONTRACTOR AND		
	Page	Book
Oola Ph.	1	1
Townlands &c.		
Arrybreaga	2	1
Ballybeg Ballyfirreen N. S. Ballylahiff Ballyneety Ballyshoneen Ballyvalode Boherdotia Bohernagraga	11 7 8 9 6 4 12 10 5	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Brackyle Castle Lloyd	3 16	1
Clashanea Cloghadalton Coolnapisha Cross Cottage Cullahaun Well	48 14 15 13 9	11122
Drehidahaboy	1	2
Farranafina (Glebe of)	17 18	1
Garryduff Garryheakin Gortaclareen Gortakilleen Gortnaboola Gortyvahane	24 20 19 22 21 25	

(Contd.)

INDEX (Contd.)

	Page	Book
Keeloges Knockballyfookeen Kylenagoneeny	28 2 6 2 3 2 7	1 1 1
Lady's Well Lisnacullia Longford East West Castle	7 31 29 30 46	2 1 1 1
Maelra Moancola Moanroe Monahila Monaviddoge	32 33 34 35 36	1 1 1 1
Newtown North South	37 3 8	1
Oola Castle Hills East Hills West Village	45 40 39 47	1 1
Pipers Garden, The Portane Prospect Pound Cross, The	3 41 42 5	2 1 1 2
Rathaleen Rathaniska Rathard Rathcallaun	49 2 5 1 50	1 2 1 1
Shanaclogh East West	44 43	1 1
Toberanluan Tobernafinoga Tobernagapple Tobernarova	8 4 5 10	2 2 2 2

PARISH OF OOLA

BOOK I

Ph. of Oola

-- B. S.

1

Ubhla, place of apple trees.

Oola

-- J. O'D.

-- Inhabitants

Ulla

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Presentment Book 1834

-- Revd. J. Hewitt, P.P. -- Civil Survey 1654-56

Ula Owla -- Civil Survey 1654-56
-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated about 12 miles S.E. of the City of Limerick. It is bounded on the E. and S. by the County of Tipperary; N. by the parish of Doon; and W. by the phs. of Tuoghcluggin and Templebredon.

This parish is about 4 miles long and nearly 3 miles broad. It is well convenienced with an excellent line of road leading from Limerick to Tipperary through its centre, besides another crossing this nearly at right angles in the centre and leading from Cappamore to Pallas Grean &c. It contains 43 townlands, 36 of which are very level, and the remainder, including Ocla Hills, provide excellent pasture lands. It is all arable, and fuel is consequently the scarcest accomodation.

Townlands

Ahavrega

-- B. S.

2

Airidh Bhréige, false or pseudo-sentinels (applied to standing-stones as is Fir Bhreige in other places).

Arrybreaga

-- J. O'D.

Areebrague Ahavrega -- Presentment Book 1834
-- Revd. J. Mahony. P.P.

-- Inhabitants

Ariebregie

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. and S. by the ph. of Grean; on the W. by Ballyneety Td.; and on the N. by Garryheakin Td.

This td. contains 167 acres, which are arable and without limestone in it. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Hiff. Consadine, Esq. has it let by a lease of 1 life at £1 10s. per acre to Francis O'Ryan, Esq. (Cashel), and he again by leases of 21 years at £3 10s. per acre to 5 tenants and in farms of 40 to 6 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per

Ahavrega (contd.)

acre half yearly. Tithe 1s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Brackile

-- B. S.

3

Breac-Choill, the speckled or spotted wood.

Brackyle

-- J. O'D.

Brackile

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

-- Thos. Apjohn, Esq.

-- Inhabitants

Brackeile

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the east end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Coolnapisha td.; W. by the phs. of Ballynaclogh and Grean; S. by Knockballyfookeen td.; and N. by Doon ph.

This td. contains 487 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor, the Court of Chancery, has it let to Mary E. Hunt, and she again to 15 tenants, 6 with leases ending in 1849, and the rest at will. All at £2 10s. to £1 8s. per acre and in farms of 30 to 15 and 3 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.6d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly, and tithe included in the rent. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought. Prevailing Names: Ryan.

Ballyshoneen

-- B. S.

Δ

Baile Seóinín, little John's town.

Ballyshoneen

-- J. O'D.

-- Inhabitants

Situated in the west end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Knockballyfookeen td.; W. and N. by the ph. of Ballynaclogh; and S. by the ph. of Grean.

This td. contains 23 acres, arable and without limestone. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor, Hiffernan Consadine, has it let by a lease for ever at £2 12s. 6d. per acre to Mrs. Edmond O'Maher, and she again to one tenant by a lease of lives renewable for ever at £3 10s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 2s.4d. per acre.

Bohernagraga

-- B.S.

5

Bóthar na Gráige, road of the village.

Bohernagraga

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

Bohernagraga (contd.)

Situated in the west end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the ph. of Tuoghcluggin; S. and W. by the ph. of Grean: and N. by Knockballyfookeen td.

This td. contains 185 acres, which are arable, with limestone in it. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Thos. Fitzgibbon, Esq. has it let per his agent Wm. S. Fisher, Esq. to the heirs of Geo. E. Bruce, Esq., and they again to 8 tenants by leases of one life or 21 years at £2 17s. per acre and in farms of 30 to 5 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.6d. per acre half yearly, and tithe not paid since 1836. Bog very scarce. Prevailing Names: Madden. (N.B. W.S.F. is agent to Bruce. and not to Fitzgibbon.)

Ballyneety

-- B. S.

6

Baile an Fhaoitigh, White's town.

Ballyneety '

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Revd. T. Mahony, P.P.

-- Barony Map

BallinItie Ballyneety -- Civil Survey 1654-56 -- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Arrybreaga td.; W. and S. by the ph. of Templebredon: and N. by the td. of Newtown South.

This td. contains 105 acres, which are arable, without limestone in it. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, flax and wheat. The proprietors, the heirs of Jas. Archdeacon, Esq., have it let on a lease for ever at £1 16s. per acre to Eyre Lloyd, Esq., and he again to 6 tenants by leases of 3 lives and 31 years at £2 15s. to £3 per acre and in farms of 32 to 2 acres. Co. Cess generally .1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe not paid since 1833. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought. Frevailing Names: Ryan.

Ballyforeen North

-- B. S.

7

Baile Fioracin, Ferrin's town.

Ballyfirreen &c.

-- J. O'D.

Ballyforeen

-- Revd. J. Hewitt

-- Inhabitants Ballyferreen

-- Barony Map

Ballifirine

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Ballyferrine

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Ballyforeen North (contd.)

Situated in the south end of the Parish. Bounded on the E. by the td. of Castle Lloyd; and W., N. and S. by the ph. of Doon.

This td. contains 44 acres, which are arable, with limestone in it. Soil light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn, flax and some wheat. The proprietor Lord Portarlington has it let by a lease for ever at 4s.6d. per acre to Miss L. Bradshaw, and she again for same tenure to John Bradshaw, Esq., in whose own occupation part of it is, and the rest let to 12 tenants, 4 with leases of 1 life or 31 years, at £3 to £1 10s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe not paid since 1834. Bog for fuel is very scarce and is bought by the tenantry. Prevailing Names: Bradshaw.

Ballyforeen South

-- B. S.

8

For name, see above, page 7.

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the td. of Kylenagoneeny; W. and S. by the td. of Clashanea; and N. by Cloghadalton td.

This td. contains 13 acres, which are arable, without limestone in it. Soil partly light, and producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Lord Portarlington has it let by a lease for ever at 4s.6d. per acre to Miss L. Bradshaw, and she again for same tenure to John Bradshaw, Esq., under whom is one tenant at £3 per acre on a lease of 3 lives or 31 years. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe not paid since 1834. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought.

Ballylahiv

-- B. S.

9

Baile Ui Laithimh, Lahy's or Lahiff's town.

Ballylahiff

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Presentment Book 1834

-- Barony Map -- Revd. J. Hewitt

Ballylahiv -- Revd. J. He

-- Inhabitants

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E., S. and W. by the ph. of Grean; and N. by the tds. of Shanaclogh East and West.

This td. contains 295 acres, which are arable, and without limestone in it. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Lord Portarlington has it let to Thos. Lloyd, Esq., of Beechmount, by a lease for ever

Ballylahiv (contd.)

at 9s. per acre, and he again by his agent Edwd. Maunsell, Esq., to 7 tenants on leases of 1 life or 31 years at £3 3s. per acre and in farms of 48 to 6½ acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.7d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 1s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and is bought. Frevailing Names: Hayes.

Boherethotia

-- B. S.

10

Bóthar Dóithte, burnt road.

Boherdotia

-- J. O'D.

Boherdota

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824 -- Presentment Book 1834

-- Revd. J. Hewitt

- Inhabitants

Boherdoty

-- Barony Map

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Co. Tipperary; W. by the td. of Shanaclogh East; S. by Ballylahiff td.; and N. by the td. of Ballybeg.

This td. contains 169 acres, which are arable, without limestone in it. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn, flax and some wheat. The proprietor Lord Tortarlington has it let to 11 tenants, one with a lease of lives renewable for ever at 8s. per acre, and the others at will and at £1 13s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.6d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 1s.3d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce, and is bought by the tenantry.

Ballybeg

-- B. S.

11

Baile Beag, little town.

Ballybeg

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Revd. J. Hewitt

-- Inhabitants

-- Barony Map

Ballybegg

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the east end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the td. of Moanmore (Co. Tipperary); W. and N. by the td. of Oola Hills East; and S. by Boherdotia td.

This td. contains 159 acres, which are arable, and without limestone in it. Soil partly light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Lord Portarlington has it let to Mr. John Kirby by a lease of 1 life at £1 10s. per acre, and he again in farms of 25 to 2 acres sublets to 5 tenants, one with a lease of 1 life, and the others at

Ballybeg (contd.)

will, at £3 to £2 2s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.6d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 1s.2d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and is bought by the tenantry. Prevailing Names: Ryan.

Ballyvalode

-- B.S.

12

Baile Mhullóid, Mallett's town.

Ballyvalode

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Revd. J. Hewitt

-- Inhabitants

Ballivoloid Ballyvillode -- Civil Survey 1654-56
-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the north end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Moanroe td.; W. by the ph. of Doon; N. by Portane td.; and S. by the td. of Garryduff.

This td. contains 249 acres, which are arable, with some limestone in it. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Clement Sadlier, Esq., has it let to Pierce Lowe, Esq., and he again to 20 tenants by leases of 3 lives or 31 years at £2 10s. per acre and in farms of 50 to 3½ acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 2s.8d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and is bought by the tenantry.

Coolnapish

-- B. S.

13

Cúl na Píse, back land of the peas.

Coolnapisha

-- J. C'D.

Coolinapish

-- Inhabitants

Coolnapish

-- Revd. J. Mahony, P.P.

Cullinapissie

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the north end of the parish. Bounded on the E. and S. by the ph. of Tuoghcluggin; N. by Doon ph.; and W. by Brackyle td.

This td. contains 357 acres, which are arable, and without limestone. Soil partly light and wet, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Major Leslie has it let per his agent Thos. Weldon, Esq. to 8 tenants by leases of 3 lives or 31 years at £2 2s. to £1 16s. per acre, and in farms of 40 to 3 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 3s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce, and is bought by the tenantry. Prevailing Name: Ryan.

<u>Clashaneea</u>

-- B. S.

14

Clais an Fhiaidh, trench or pit of the deer.

Clashanea

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

- Revd. J. Hewitt

-- Inhabitants

-- Presentment Book 1834

Situated in the N. end of the parish. Bounded on the R. by the td. of Kylenagoneeny; W. by Prospect td.; N. by Gortaclareen td.; and S. by the ph. of Doon.

This td. centains 90 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn, flax and some wheat. The proprietor Lord Portarlington has it let by a lease for ever to Miss L. Bradshaw, and she again to the heirs of Hugh Brady, Esq. by a lease of one life at £1 15s. per acre. The latter sublets to 6 tenants by a lease of one life, also, at £2 15s. per acre. Go. Gess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe not paid since 1836. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Cloghadalton

-- B. S.

15

Cloch a' Dalatuin, Dalton's stone house.

Cloghadalton

-- J. C'D

-- Revd. J. Hewitt

-- Inhabitants

Cloughadalton

-- Barony Map

Gloghdallton

-- Civil Survey 1654-86

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the td. of Kylenagoneeny; W. by Gortaclareen td.; N. by the td. of Castle Lloyd; and S. by the td. of Ballyfirreen South.

This td. contains 62 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Lord Portarlington has it let by a lease for ever at 4s.6d. per acre to Miss b. Bradshaw, and she again for same tenure to John Bradshaw, Esq. at £3 per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Castle Lloyd

.... B. S.

16

Caislean Lloyd.

Castle Lloyd

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Hewitt

-- Inhabitants

Castle Lloyd (contd.)

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the Glebe of Kylenagoneeny; N. by Garryduff td.; S. by Cloghadalton td.; and W. by the td. of Ballyfirreen North.

This td. contains 95 acres, which are arable and planted with ornamental trees. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Lord Portarlington has it let to Miss L. Bradshaw by a lease for ever, and she again to Thos. Lloyd at £1 5s. per acre. So. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly.

Parranafina

-- B. S.

17

Fearann Phynigh, Pyne's land.

Farranafina

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Hewitt

-- Inhabitants

recte - Farranaphyna.

Situated in the south-west end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Gortaclareen td.; W. and N. by the td. of Newtown North; and S. by the tds. of Prospect and Garryheakin.

This td. contains 71 acres, which are arable and with some limestone. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Richard 0. Ellard, Esq. has it let per his agent Thos. Weldon, Esq. to 3 tenants by leases of 1 life or 31 years at £3 per acre half yearly. Co. Cess generally 1s.6d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 1s.4d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce, and is bought by the tenantry.

Glebe of Farranafina

-- B. S.

18

See townland name above.

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Clashanea td.; and W., N. and S. by Farranefina td.

This Glebe contains $2\frac{1}{2}$ acres, which are aralle. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor the Revd. Richd. Herbert has it let to one tenant by a lease of one life at £4 per acre. Oo. Sess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half-yearly.

Gurtaclareen

-- B. S.

19

Gort a' Chláirín, field or garden of the little board (placed across a ford).

Gurtaclareen (contd.)

Gortaclareen Gurtaclareen

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Hewitt, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. and N. by Doon ph.; W. by the td. of Newtown North; and S. by Clashanea td.

This td. contains 173 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietors Jas. Peacocke & Richd. Ellard, Esqrs., have it let in farms of 38 to 5 acres by leases of one life at £2 15s. to £3 per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.6d. per acre half yearly, and tithe 1s. per do. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and is bought.

Garryheakin

-- B. S.

20

Garraidh h-Eicin, Hekin's garden.

Garryheakin

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Hewitt

-- Inhabitants

Garryheaken

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Presentment Book 1834

Garryheakeen -- Barony Map

Garriheackine

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Prospect td.; W. by the ph. of Tuoghcluggin; N. by Farranfina td.; and S. by the td. of Arrybreaga.

This td. contains 223 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, flax and wheat. The proprietor Lord Portarlington has it let by a lease for ever at 7s.6d. per acre to the Revd. Wm. Lloyd, and he again to 8 tenants by leases of 1 life and 21 years at £2 15s. to £2 19s. per acre, tithe included. Co. Cess generally 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Bog for fuel is very scarce. Prevailing Names: Bourke.

Gurtnaboola

-- B.S.

21

Gort na Buaile, field of the booley, or dairy place.

Gortnaboola

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Hewitt

-- Inhabitants

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Newtown td.; W. and N. by the td. of Newtown in the ph. of Tuoghcluggin; and S. by Ballyneety td.

This td. contains 8 acres, which are arable and without

Gurtnaboola (contd.)

limestone. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn, flax and some wheat. The proprietor Geo. Fitzgerald, Esq. has it let to one tenant by a lease of one life at £3 per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.7d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe not paid since 1836. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Gurtakilleen

-- B.S.

22

Gort a' Chillin, field of the little church or graveyard.

Gortakilleen

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Hewitt

-- Inhabitants

-- Thos. Apjohn, Esq.

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the td. of Shanaclogh West; W. by the td. of Kylenagoneeny; N. by Ools Hills West td.; and S. by Grean ph.

This td. contains 128 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Lord Portarlington has it let to Wm. Sadlier, Esq. by a lease for ever, and he again to George Bruce, Esq. for the same tenure; and the latter, also, for the above lease per his agent W. J. Fisher, Esq. to 4 tenants at £2 11s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.6d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and is bought.

Glebe of Kilenaguinneeny -- B. S.

23

Coill na gCoinínidhe, wood of the rabbits.

Eylenagoneeny

-- j. O'D.

Killnagoninye

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the td. of Oola Hills West; W. by Castle Lloyd td.; N. by Moanoola td.; and S. by Kylenagoneeny td.

This td. contains 41 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil partly deep, producing corn, potatoes, flax and some wheat. The proprietor the Revd. Edmond Herbert has it let at will to 9 tenants at £4 10s. to £3 15s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly, and tithe none. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought.

Garryduff

-- B. S.

24

Garraidh Dubh, black garden.

Garryduff

-- J. O'D.

-- Inhabitants

-- Revd. J. Hewitt

-- Thos. Apjohn, Esq.

Garryduffe

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the tds. of Moanroe and Moancola; W. by Doon ph.; N. by Ballyvalode td.; and S. by Castle Lloyd td.

This td. contains 133 acres, which are arable with some limestone in it. Soil partly deep and wet, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietors the Representatives of General Keatinge have it let to Richard Hammersley, Esq. for ever at 16s. per acre, and he again to 1 tenant at £1 1s. per acre by a lease renewable for ever, which tenant sublets part of it to another at will at £2 2s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.7d. per acre half yearly. Withe not paid since 1820. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Gurtavechaan

-- B. S.

25

Gort Ui Bheathain, O'Beahan's town.

Cortyvahane

-- J. O'D.

Gorteevehane

-- Inhabitants

Gurtavehaan Gurtivehane

Gorteevahane

-- Presentment Book 1834

-- Revd. Thos. Mahony, P.P. -- Thos. Apjohn, Esq.

-- Barony Map

Situated in the east end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the td. of Moanahila; W. by Moanroe td.; N. by Moanaviddoge td.; and S. by the td. of Ocla Hills East.

This td. contains 182 acres, which are arable and with limestone in it. Soil partly light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor William Shouldham, Esq. has it let per his agent Mr. Thos. Apjohn to 7 tenants in farms of 48 to 20 acres at £1 10s. to 13s. per acre by leases of 3 lives or 31 years. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 10d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce, and is bought by the tenantry.

Knockballyfookoon

Knockballyfookoon (contd.)

Knockballyfookeen

Knockballyfookoon -- Inhabitants

Knockballyfookeen Cnockballifookon Knockballyfookin -- Revd. Thos. Mahony
-- Presentment Book 1834
-- Civil Survey 1654-56
-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the west end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the ph. of Doon; W. by Ballynaclogh ph.; N. by Brackyle td.; and S. by Bohernagraga td.

-- J. O'D.

This td. contains 433 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietors Col. Wyndham O'Brien (of 5% acres) and Thos. Lloyd, Esq. of Castletownroche have it let to 4 tenants by leases expiring in 1878 at 18s./per acre and in farms of 50 to 7 acres; and they again at will to 9 other tenants in farms of 3 to 1% acres at £2 per acre. Tithe 10d. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.3d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Fuel is very scarce and is bought by the tenantry. Provailing Names: Ryan.

Kilenaguineeny

.... B. S.

27

Coill na gCoininidhe, wood of the rabbits.

Some call this Cill na gCoinínidhe, but I think incorrectly.

Kylenagoneeny

Kilenaguinneeny

Kilnagoneeny Killnagoninye -- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Hewitt

-- Inhabitants

-- Presentment Book 1834 -- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the H. by Gortakilleen td.; W. by Clashanea td.; N. by the tds. of Castle Lloyd and Cloghadalton; and S. by Grean ph.

This td. contains 273 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, flax and wheat. The proprietor Lord Portarlington has it let to Miss L. Bradshaw, and she again to 17 tenants by leases of 3 lives at £2 12s. to £1 15s. per acre, and in farms of 17 to 5 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 2s. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought. Frevailing Names: Dee.

<u>Kileogue</u>

-- B. S.

28

Kileogue (contd.)

Kealoges

Keeloges Keelogue -- J. O'D.

-- Presentment Book 1834

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824
-- Revd. J. Hewitt. P.F.

-- Inhabitants

-- Thos. Apjohn, Esq.

Killogue -- Barony Map

Situated in the east end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the tds. of Lisnacullia, Moanaviddoge and Gortyvahane; W. by Portane td.; N. by Castletown ph.; and S. by Moanroe td.

This td. contains 254 acres, which are arable and with limestone in it. Soil deep and wet, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor General Shouldham has it let per his agent Thos. Apjohn, Esq. to 20 tenants at will and at £1 15s. per acre, in farms of 23 to 1½ acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 1s. per do. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and is bought. The prevailing names are English.

Longford Bast

-- B.S.

29

Longphort, prond. Longthort, a camp, or fortification.

Longford

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Revd. J. Hewitt, P.F.

-- Inhabitants
-- Barony Map

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the east end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the ph. of Doon; W. by the td. of Longford West; N. by Doon ph.; and S. by Moanahila td.

This td. contains 100 acres, which are arable and with some limestone in it. Soil partly light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Lord Portarlington has it let to 1 tenant by a lease of 3 lives at £1 7s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.6d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 1s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Longford West

-- B. S.

30

For name see above, page 29.

Situated in the east end of the parish. Bounded on

Longford West (contd.)

the E. and S. by the td. of Longford East; N. by Castletown td.; and W. by the tds. of Lisnacullia, Moanaviddoge and Gortyvahane.

This td. contains 95 acres, which are arable and with some limestone in it. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Lord Innismore has it let to Mr. Jas. Riordan (Tipperary) by a lease of 3 lives at £1 7s. 4d. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 1s. per acre.

Lissnacullia

-- B. S.

31

Lios na Coille, fort of the wood.

Lisnacullia

-- J. O'D.

Lisnakilla

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

L**i**snak**e**lla

-- Co. Presentment Book 1834 -- Revd. J. Hewitt, P.P.

Lisnakella Lisnaculla -- Inhabitants

Lisnakelly

-- Thos. Apjohn, Esq.

-- Barony Map

Lissnakellye Lisnakelly

-- Civil Survey 1654-56 -- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the east end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the td. of Longford East; W. by Keeloges td.; N. by Doon ph.; and S. by the td. of Moanaviddoge.

This td. contains 89 acres, which are arable and with limestone. Soil partly light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Arthur L. Shouldham, Esc., has it let per his agent Mr. Thos. Apjohn to one tenant by a lease of 3 lives, and she again to 5 others in farms of 30 to 6 acres by leases expiring in 1844 and 1860 at £2 5s. to £1 17s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 1s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought by the tenantry. Prevailing Names: English.

Mweelia

-- B. S.

32

Maol-Rath, bald or flat fort.

Maelra

-- J. O'D.

Mweelra

-- Inhabitants

Mealrausk

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

Mealra

-- Revd. J. Hewitt, P.P.

Situated in the S. end of the parish. Bounded on the E. and S. by the td. of Newtown North; W. by the ph. of Tuoghcluggin; and N. By Doon ph.

This td. contains 130 acres, which are arable and with

Mweelia (contd.)

limestone in it. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Col. Wyndham O'Brien has it let per his agent J. Crcw, Esq., to one tenant at will and at £2 2s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Moanoola

-- B. S.

33

Moin Ubhla, bog of the apples.

Moanoola

-- J. O'D.

-- Inhabitants

-- Revd. J. Hewitt. P.P.

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the tds. of Oola Hills East and West; W. by Garryduff td.; and N. by Moanroe td.; S. by the td. of Oola Hills West.

This td. contains 133 acres, which are arable and without limestone in it. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor General Keatinge has it let to Richd. Hamersley, Esq., at 16s. per acre by a lease for ever, and he again to 12 tenants, 5 with leases of one life, and all at £1 10s. to £2 15s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 1s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and is bought.

Moanrooa

-- B. S.

34

Móin Ruadh, red bog.

Moanroe

Moanrue

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Revd. J. Hewitt. P.P.

-- Inhabitants

-- Barony Map

-- Civil Survey 1654-56 Munyrea -- Acts of Settlement &c. Moneroe.

Situated in the east end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the td. of Gortyvahane; W. by Ballyvalode td.; N. by Keeloges td.; and S. by the td. of Cola Hills East.

This td. contains 309 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietors Lord Portarlington & Richd. Hamersley, Esq., have it let to 5 tenants at £1 to 19s.3d. per acre by leases of lives renewable for ever; and one of the above five has part let again to 6 others at £1 12s. by leases ending in 1844. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per

Moanrooa (contd.)

acre half yearly. Tithe not paid since 1834. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and is bought. The prevailing names are Ryan.

Moanahila

-- B. S.

35

Moin na hAidhle, bog of the adze (meaning very doubtful); the i is sounded long.

Moanahila

-- J. O'D.

-- Inhabitants

Monahile

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Presentment Book 1834

Moanaheila

-- Revd. J. Hewitt. P.P.

Monahilly -- Thos. Apjohn, Esq.

Situated in the east end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the Co. Tipperary; W. by Gortyvahane ta.; N. by the td. of Longford East; and S. by the td. of Oola Hills East.

This td. contains 174 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil light and wet, producing potatoes, corn & flax. The proprietors the heirs of Saml. Marshall, Esq., have it let per Thos. Bennett (agent under the Court) to 12 tenants by leases of 3 lives at £1 2s. to £1 11s. per acre, and in farms of 20 to 11 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.7d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe not paid since 1836. Bog for fuel is very scarce. Prevailing Names: Dwyer and Ryan.

Moanavidthogue

-- B. S.

36

Moin na bhFiodog, bog of the plovers.

Moanaviddoge

-- J. O'D.

Moanavidogue

-- Revd. J. Hewitt, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

Moanafidogue

-- Thos. Apjohn, Esq.

Situated in the east end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Longford West td.; W. by Keeloges td.; N. by the td. of Lisnacullia; and S. by Gortyvahane td.

This td. contains 98 acres, which are arable without limestone in it. Soil light and wet, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Arthur L. Shouldham, Esq., has it let to 9 tenants at £1 10s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 5d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and is bought.

Newtown North

-- B. S.

Baile nua. new town. J. O'D.

Newtown &c.

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Hewitt, P.P.

-- Barony Map

Newtown Ellard

-- Presentment Book 1834

-- Inhabitants

Situated in the S.W. end of the parish. Bounded on the B. by the td. of Gortaclareen; W. by Maelra td.; H. by the ph. of Muoghcluggin; and S. by Parranafina td.

This td. contains 277 acres, which are arable and with some limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, flax and wheat. The proprietor Lord Muskerry has it let by a lease of lives renewable for ever at 3s.6d. per acre to Richd. Ellard, Esq., and he again to 10 tenants by a lease of one life or 21 years at £3 to 13s.4d. per acre, and in farms of 44 to 3 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly, and tithe 1s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and is bought by the tenantry. Prevailing Names: Ryan.

Newtown South

-- B. S.

38

37

See above, page 37.

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Garryheakin td.; 'W. by Gortnaboola td.; N. by the ph. of Tuoghcluggin; and S. by Ballyneety td.

This td. contains 18 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Geo. Fitzgerald, Esq., has it let to 3 tenants by leases of one life at £3 per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.6d. per acre half yearly. Tithe not paid since 1834. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Oola Hills West

--- B. S.

39

Ubhla, apples.

Oola Hills &c.

-- J. O'D

-- Inhabitants

Ulla Hills Ulla Hills West

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824 -- Revd. J. Hewitt, P.P.

Oolagh-Hill or

-- Barony Map Pollardstown

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. and N. by the td. of Oola Hills East; W. by Moanoola td.; and S. by Gortakilleen td.

Oola Hill West (contd.)

This td. contains 73 acres, which are arable and with limestone in it. /Soil light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Lord Portarlington has it let to Saml. Bradshaw, Esq., and he again to one tenant by a lease of 3 lives at £3 per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly, and tithe 1s.6d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought by the tenantry.

Oola Hills Bast

-- B.S.

40

See above, page 30.

Situated in the east end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Ballybeg td.; W. by the td. of Oola Hills West; N. by Moanahila td.; and S. by Gortakilleen td.

This td. contains 530 acres, which are arable and with limestone. Soil light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn, flax and some wheat. The proprietor Lord Portarlington has it let to Robt. Evans, Esq., by a lease of 3 lives at £1 8s. per acre, in whose occupation part of it is, and the rest sublet to 9 tenants at will and at £2 16s. to £2 5s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d per acre half yearly. Tithe 1s.6d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and is bought by the tenantry. Prevailing Names: Ryan.

Purtaan

-- B. S.

41

Portán, a little bank.

Portane

-- J. O'D.

Purtane

-- Revd. J. Hewitt, P.P.

-- Inhabitants

Portanes Pertanes -- Civil Survey 1654-56
-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the east end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Keeloges td.; W. by Doon ph.; N. by Castletown ph.; and S. by the td. of Ballyvalode.

This td. contains 112 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Matt. Barrington, Esq. has it let to 2 tenants, and they again to 4 others by leases of 3 lives or 31 years at £2 5s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 2s.8d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought by the tenantry.

Prospect

-- B. S.

42

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. Hewitt, P.P.

Prospect (contd.)

Situated in the S. end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Clashanea td.; W. and S. by Garryheakin td.; and N. by Farranafina td.

This td. contains 100 acres, which are arable with some limestone in it. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Lord Fortarlington has it let by a lease for ever to Miss. L. Bradshaw, and she again to Richd. Hamersley, Esq., at £2 2s. per acre, who also has it let to Clement Sadlier, Esq., by a lease of 31 years at £3 3s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly, and tithe 1s. per acre.

Shannaclogh West

-- B. S.

43

Seana-Chloch, the old stone house.

Shanaclogh West

-- J. O'D. -- Inhabitants

Shannaclogh West

Shannaclough Shannaclogh

-- Revâ. J. Hewitt, P.P. -- Acts of Settlement, etc.

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the td. of Shanaclogh East; W. by Gortakilleen td.; N. by the td. of Oola Hills East; and S. by the td. of Ballylahiff.

This td. contains 106 acres, which are arable and with limestone in it. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Lord Portarlington has it let to Thos. Lloyd, Esq., by a lease for ever at 9s. per acre, and he again per his agent Edwd. Maunsell, Esq., to 4 tenants by leases of one life or 31 years at £3 3s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.7d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 1s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and is bought.

Shannaclogh East

-- B. S.

44

See above, page 43.

Situated in the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Boherdotia td.; W. by the td. of Shannaclogh West; N. by the td. of Oola Hills East; and S. by Ballylahiff td.

This td contains 79 acres, which are arable and with limestone in it. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Lord Portarlington has it let to the heirs of Robt. Evans, Esq., and they again to Mr. Joseph Gubbins by a lease of 3 lives or 31 years at £2 12s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Miscellaneous Features

Oola Castle

-- Inhabitants

45

Caislean Ubhla.

Oola Castle

-- J. O'D.

In the S.E. part of the td. of Oola Hills East.

This castle is placed on the face of a rising pasture hill. It is square in shape, of about 20 ft. side and about 60 ft. high.

Longford Castle

-- Inhabitants

46

Caisleán a' Longphuirt.

Longford Castle

-- J. O'D.

On the N.W. part of the td. of Longford East and on the side of the Dead River.

This castle is about 20 ft. high and the same wide. There is no account of its founder, etc.

Ocla (Village of)

-- Inhabitants

47

See parish name.

Situated on the union of the tds. of Moanocla, the Glebe of Kylenagoneeny and Oola Hills West, and on the road from Limerick to Tipperary.

This village contains about 60 houses, all of low structure and chiefly mud. Two of them are licensed public houses and six with groceries. A little to the west of the village is a police barrack. The R. C. Chapel is the principal building. It was erected in 1838 and in 9 months at the expense of £1,200, all contributed by the parishioners, besides the intended expenditure of £500 more to finish it. It is a handsome, plain building, of an oblong form, the walls exceeding 30 ft. in height. It is said to be able to accommodate 2,000 persons with ease.

Castle Lloyd

-- Inhabitants

48

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the E. part of the td. of same name.

This castle, which was built by the Lloyds some time before 1800, is now (1840) in a neglected and decayed state by reason of the death of the Captain this year; but Thos. Lloyd, Esq., the present heir, intends to repair it. The body of the house is 4 story high, and about 200 feet west of it, in line with the N. side which is the front, is a tower about 50 ft. high, between which and the E. end forms the kitchen, &c. The house has several minor pillars on the front, etc.

Rath a Lheen

-- Inhabitants

40

Ráth a' Lin, fort of the flax.

Rathaleen -- J. O'D.

The Flax Fort (Eng.) -- Inhabitants

Situated in the centre of the td. of Newtown North, and a little to the west of the Pound Cross.

This fort, which is circular, is about 2 chains in diameter and 2 ft. high, with a green flat surface, and composed of earth. It is placed on an eminence, from which it commands an exceedingly good prospect.

Rath Chullaun

-- Inhabitants

50

Ráth Chathaláin, Cathalan's fort.

Rathcallaun

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the S.E. corner of Gortakilleen td.

This fort, which is of an eval shape, is about 12 chains in diameter, has a green surface, and is composed of earth. It is placed on a level plain and in a cultivated field.

Rath Ard

-- Inhabitants

51

Ráth Árā, high fort.

Rathard

__ J. O'D.

The High Fort (Eng.) - Inhabitants

Situated in the S.W. part of the td. of Garryheakin.

This fort, which is circular, is 2 chains in diameter and 5 ft. high, and is composed of earth, with a green flat surface. It is placed on a very high hill, from which can be seen a great tract of the surrounding country.

End of Book I.

PARISH OF OOLA

BOOK II

Drihid Ahabuee

-- Inhabitants

1

Droichead Atha Bhuidhe, bridge of the yellow ford.

Drehidahaboy

-- J. O'D.

Bridge of the) Yellow Ford

-- Inhabitants

Situated on the south boundary of the td. of Longford West, at the junction of same, Longford Wast and Gortyvahane, and on the road from Oola to Doon.

This bridge was built in 1825 at the expense of about £40. It is one chain long, 10 ft. high, and has two arches.

Rath an Uiske

-- Inhabitants

2

Ráth an Uisce, fort of the water.

Rathaniska

-- J. C'D.

The Watery Fort

-- Irhabitants

Situated in the N. corner of the td. of Ballyshoreen.

This fort, which is circular, is about 2 chains in diameter, and is 2 ft. higher than the surface. It is composed of earth and is placed in a low flat meadow, generally wet, from which circumstance it was denominated.

The Pipers Carden

- Inhabitants - J. O'D.

3

Situated in the S.W. corner of the td. of Claggin (Tuoghcluggin Ph.) and about 2 chains S. of the road from Linerick to Tipperary.

It is denominated from a piper, who possessed it heretofore. It contains about half an acre and is now cultivated.

Thobar Na Fanogue

-- Inhabitants

4

Tobar na Fionnóige, well of the royston-crow.

Tobernafinoga

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the extreme south point of the td. of Oola Hills East, on the boundary between same and Shana-clogh West, and attached to the N. side of the road from Limerick to Tipperary.

Thobar na Fanogue (contd.)

This well, which is pure spring water, sends forth a small stream, which runs through the village of Oola, from thence flows through the parish, and falls into the Dead River. It received its name from a fionnog cr royston-crow, which generally perched near it.

Thobar na Goppull

-- Inhabitants

5

Tobar na gCapall, well of the horses.

The Horses' Well (Eng.). - Inhabitants

Tobernagapple

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the centre of the west end of the td. of Knockballyfookeen.

A spring well, placed in a cultivated field.

The Found Cross

- Inhabitants

6

Situated in the middle of the west boundary of Parranafina td.. and S.E. of the td. of Newtown North.

This cross is formed by two roads, one of which leads from Cappamore to Cullen, off which leads another to the village of Cola.

Cullabaun Wall

-- Inhabitants

7

Tobar Chathaláin, Cathalan's well. J. O'D.

Situated in the S.E. corner of Fallyvalode td., and within one chain of the east boundary.

A spring well about 3 ft. wide. It is good water, and is placed in a green field.

Lady's Well

-- Inhabitants

*

-- J. C'D.

Tobar Mhuire, the Virgin Mary's well.

Situated in the S.W. corner of Ballylahiff td., and about 30 ft. N. of the south boundary.

"Lady's Well", or "Thotar Mhuirra", is 2 ft. in diameter and 3 ft. deep. It is an excellent spring, from which runs a rapid rivulet; and beside it is a decayed old trunk of an ash tree. As this well is dedicated to the Virgin Mary, devotions are particularly performed at it on the anniversary of her Assumption, the 15th August, and patterns were held at it until about 1812.

Thobar Cen Luch

-- Inhabitants

8

Tobar Anluain, Hanlon's well.

Toberanluan

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the S. part of the td. of Bohernagraga, and about 12 chains N. of the read from Fallas to Oola.

This well, which is a good spring, is about 3 ft. in diameter, with a rivulet running from it. It is placed in a small valley in a green field.

Cross Cottage

-- Inhabitants

9

Situated in the M. part of the td. of Knockbally-fookeen, about 5 chains M. of the road from Limerick to Tipperary.

This cottage was built about 1780 for about £150. It is a thatched house, the property of Mr. Thos. Ryan.

Thobar ne Rhoive

-- Inhabitants

10

Tobar na Róimhe, the well of Rome.

Tobarnarova

-- J. O'D.

Rome Well (Eng.)

-- Imhabitents

Situated in the centre of the E. part of the td. of Oola Hills Host, and a little N. of Oola Castle.

This little well, which is regarded as sacred by the peasantry, is about 18 inches deep, 12 inches wide at its mouth, and 24 inches wide at the bottom. It is curiously formed by nature in a solid rock, having always a depth of 6 inches of water in it, and it is said that neither the greatest drought nor the heaviest rainfall decreases or fills it. Its formation, as told by the natives, is as follows:

The family of Oola Castle lacked water and appealed to the Pope, who consecrated a bottle of water for them. The property of this water was that, when poured on the spot where is now the well, a well of excellent water appeared, rendering enough at all times, though not supplied from any other source. The people also affirm that the water of this well cannot be made to boil by any heat.

and of the Parish of Cola